
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Social Services, 
Housing and 
Public Health 
Policy Overview 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Wayne Bridges (Chairman) 

Teji Barnes (Vice-Chairman) 

Peter Davis 

Jas Dhot 

Beulah East (Labour Lead) 

Ian Edwards 

Becky Haggar 

John Oswell 

Shehryar Wallana 

 

 

Co-Opted Member 
 

Mary O'Connor 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 
2015 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

  

Published: Monday, 16 February 2015 

 Contact: Charles Francis 
Tel: 01895 556454 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: cfrancis@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available on the Council’s Intranet (Horizon) at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=324&Year=2015 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Electronic devices 
 
Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is 
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 
 
 

 



 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING & PUBLIC HEALTH  
 
 
To perform the policy overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters: 
 

1. Adult Social Care 
2. Older People’s Services  
3. Care and support for people with physical disabilities, mental health problems 

and learning difficulties 
4. Asylum Seekers 
5. Local Authority Public Health services  
6. Encouraging a fit and healthy lifestyle  
7. Health Control Unit, Heathrow  
8. Encouraging home ownership  
9. Social and supported housing provision for local residents 
10. Homelessness and housing needs 
11. Home energy conservation  
12. National Welfare and Benefits changes 

 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1 Apologies for Absence and to report the presence of any substitute 
Members 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2015 1 - 6 
 

4 To confirm that the items of business marked in Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

5 Review - 2014/15 -  Witness Session 7 - 22 
 

6 Forward Plan 23 - 28 
 

7 Work Programme 29 - 32 
 



Minutes

SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING AND PUBLIC 
HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

21 January 2015

Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Wayne Bridges
Teji Barnes
Peter Davis
Kuldip Lakhmana
Beulah East
Ian Edwards
Becky Haggar
Manjit Khatra
Shehryar Wallana

Co-Opted Member
Mrs Mary O'Connor

Officers Present:
Tony Zaman, Director of Adult Services
Nigel Dicker, Deputy Director, Residents Services
Tim Dauncey, SCHH Operational Finance Manager
Debby Weller, Housing Strategy Manager
John Higgins, Head of Safeguarding and Performance
Sandra Taylor, Disabilities Services, Service Manager for a Personalised Service
Kim Jebson, Disability Services, Team Manager
Shikha Sharma, Consultant in Public Health
Charles Francis, Democratic Services

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE 
OF ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jas Dhot, 
Councillor Kuldeep Lakhmana acted as substitute

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING  (Agenda Item 2)

None.

TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 
NOVEMBER 2014 (Agenda Item 3)

Were agreed as an accurate record.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED IN PART I 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS 
MARKED PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda 
Item 4)

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2

All the items were considered in Part 1

50. MAJOR REVIEWS IN 2014/15 - DRAFT FINAL REPORT

Officers introduced the draft final report and explained this 
summarised the findings of the witness sessions which had been 
held between July 2014 and November 2014.

The report and recommendations were agreed.

Resolved -

1. That the report and recommendations be agreed
2. That the report be considered at 12 February 2015 Cabinet

Action by

Democratic 
Services

51. BUDGET PROPOSALS REPORT FOR SOCIAL SERVICES, 
HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
2014/15  (Agenda Item 6)

Action by

The Operational Finance Manager introduced the report.

The report set out the draft revenue budget and capital programme of 
Adult Social Care Group, Public Health , Housing General fund and 
Housing Revenue Account for 2015/16, along with indicative 
projections for the next five years. The Committee noted that the 
Council was looking to make significant savings of around £10,113k 
across the Council for 2015/16, of which the total savings in the draft 
budget for Adult Social Care were £3,190k and £200k for Housing. 

With regards to future challenges for the Adult Social Group, it was 
noted that these stemmed from the following areas:

Demographic pressures arising from an ageing population

Transitional children moving through to Adult Services

The Winterbourne View report and the transfer of financial 
responsibility for a number of clients from the National Health 
Service to the Council.

The potential shortfall in Social Care and Health New Burdens 
Funding.

The impact of Housing Benefits changes on Temporary 
Accommodation.

The following comments were made to Cabinet:

The Committee noted the budget proposals and welcomed the work of 
the Council in this challenging area. In particular, the Committee 
welcomed the ongoing work in relation to the preventative agenda so 
that informed decisions were taken to mitigate future risks. The 
Committee acknowledged the introduction of the Care Act 2014 
introduced a significant number of changes to Adult Social Care 
funding arrangements and the introduction of the Better Care Fund had 
significant ramifications to the way in which the Council funded health 
and social care.

Page 2



3

The Committee were concerned about the costs associated with Bed 
and Breakfast accommodation and the relationship between 
homelessness and the number of void properties. However, it also 
welcomed the steps being taken across Council Departments and in 
conjunction with partners to monitor the numbers of empty properties.

The Committee welcomed the ongoing work to develop the supported 
living programme to promote independence and avoid costly residential 
placements but also recognised the need to monitor the slippage of 
several start dates closely. In relation to the Right to Buy Scheme, the 
Committee were assured that a stringent process was in place to
restrict churn in the market place.

The costs associated with transitional children were noted and in  
particular the estimate this could be managed down by 6% and not 
affect the quality of care by taking into account the experience in recent 
cohorts of children.

The Committee also noted the importance of early intervention and 
prevention and the redesign of services so that savings could be 
achieved without impacting on front line services.

Resolved -

1. That the budget projections contained in the report be 
noted and the comments made by the Committee be 
submitted to Cabinet. Democratic 

Services

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS IN HILLINGDON - ANNUAL REPORT 
2013/14 (Agenda Item 6)

The Head of Safeguarding and Performance introduced the report 
which provided an overview of the safeguarding work which had been 
conducted in 2013-14.

It was noted that there had been a number of key local developments 
and service changes which were:

The establishment of a vulnerable person’s panel 

The creation of a Care Governance Board

The implementation of the Winterbourne View plan

Reorganisation of adult social care to ensure that adult 
safeguarding is embedded across the whole operational 
service.

Convened the serious case review subcommittee to conduct a 
review and complete a multi agency action plan. 

An increase in the conversion rate of notifications to referrals 
indicating increased awareness of adult safeguarding

An increase of 21% in those accepting their protection 
arrangements

The SAPB priorities for development for 2014 onwards have been built  
around the eight Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 
(ADASS) standards of: 

Action by

Page 3



4

Outcomes

Leadership

Strategy

Commissioning

People’s Experiences of safeguarding

Service delivery and effective practice

Performance and resource management

Local safeguarding Board

The Chairman thanked officers for a concise report. During the course
of discussions, several issues were raised. These included the need for 
the Board to be more challenging of its Partners and the 
acknowledgement that the report could be improved in future by the 
incorporation of further SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, 
realistic and timely) objectives.

the Committee made the following comments to Cabinet:

The Committee welcomed the report which demonstrated that the 
multi-agency system in place to safeguard adults in Hillingdon was 
working well and a number of improvements had been made.

The Committee noted that 170 cases were substantiated. Officers 
confirmed this meant positive action had been taken to address 
safeguarding concerns.

The Committee welcomed the establishment of a vulnerable person’s 
panel and the creation of a Care Governance Board to oversee the 
quality of local provision and coordinate action to improve services. 
The Committee also noted the work that was underway within adult 
social care to ensure that safeguarding was embedded across the 
whole operational service.

The Committee raised concerns about hospital discharge at night. 
Officers confirmed that to improve matters, the Council was working in 
partnership in hospitals at an earlier stage so that appropriate 
discharge plans were in place

Given that the number of vulnerable adults in the Borough is 
increasing; the Committee welcomed the approach to develop Teams 
focussed around the family and a more holistic approach to 
safeguarding. The Committee acknowledged that the Board was 
reviewing the frequency of audits and inspections and how these 
should be monitored in the future. In addition, the Committee 
suggested that future reports could be improved by providing further 
details about closures and the actions arising from this classification.

The Committee welcomed the improvements which had been made 
since the last report and especially the continued work which is being 
done to raise the awareness of adult safeguarding with the public.

Resolved –

1. To note the contents of the Annual Report
Page 4



5

2. To provide the comments listed above to Cabinet
3. That Officers provide copies of the Terms of Reference for 

the Safeguarding Adults Board and Winterbourne Action 
Plan to the Committee

Democratic 
Services

MAJOR REVIEWS IN 2014/15 - SECOND REVIEW TOPIC
(Agenda Item 8)

Action by

The Consultant in Public Health provided a verbal report on the 
issues of obesity and NHS Dentistry in Hillingdon. 

Noting these overview reports, the Committee agreed to examine 
Dentistry in the 0 to 5 age range, focusing on prevention, as their 
second review topic. 

Resolved -

1. That the report be noted
2. That the Committee examine NHS Dentistry in the 0 to 5 

age range, focusing on prevention at 24 February 
meeting.

3. That Officers be requested to invite suitable witnesses 
to the meeting. 

Democratic 
Services

FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 9) Action by

The Committee considered the latest version of the Forward Plan.

Resolved –

1. That the report be noted.

WORK PROGRAMME  (Agenda Item 10) Action by

Reference was made to the work programme and timetable of 
meetings.

Resolved

1. The Committee noted the Work Programme 2013/14.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8:38 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 556454 .  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



   

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

TO EXAMINE CHILD ORAL HEALTH IN HILLINGDON  

WITNESS SESSION 

 
Contact Officer: Shikha Sharma & Charles Francis 

Telephone: 7235 & 6454  
 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
To provide the Committee with an overview of child oral health in Hillingdon. To 
consider what services are currently provided, the issues arising from poor oral health 
and to examine the steps which can be taken to improve this in the future. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
To question the witnesses about child oral health in Hillingdon and to address the 
following lines of enquiry: 
 
1. To establish the causes of poor child oral health in Hillingdon. 

 
2. To understand the likely future impacts should this go unchecked. 

 
3. To establish what current action is taken to prevent decayed, missing and filled 

teeth (dmft). 
 

4. To consider what more could be done to improve child oral health in the future. 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Committee is responsible for undertaking the ‘policy overview’ role in relation 

to Social Services, Housing and Public Health. This role is outlined at the start of 
the agenda.  
 

2. Previous experience from both Hillingdon and other Councils indicates that the 
Committee can have the greatest impact by focusing on a particular topic at one 
or several meetings. 

 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
3. At the 21 January 2015 meeting, the Policy and Overview Committee selected 

child oral health in Hillingdon as a single meeting review topic. 
 
4. This is the sole witness session for the review. This will examine child oral health 

in Hillingdon, the challenges faced, as well as the possible courses of action 
which might be taken in the future.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



   

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

5. The following will be attending to give evidence to the Committee: 
 

• Claire Robertson - Consultant in Dental Public Health, Public Health 
England (London Region) 

 

• Kelly Nizzer - Regional Lead (North West) Dental and Ophthalmic Services, 
NHS England London Area Team 

 

• Shikha Sharma, Consultant in Public Health, London Borough of Hillingdon 
 

 
6. Questions (attached as Annex A) have been sent to the witnesses in advance. 

Members are not constrained by these and may wish to ask supplementary 
questions.  

 
7. As supporting information, an overview report on child oral health in Hillingdon 

report is attached as Annex B. 
 

 
Attachments: 
 
Annex A: Questions for the witnesses 
Annex B: Copy of the overview report on child oral health in Hillingdon 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY  
 

• Question the witnesses, adding supplementary questions as appropriate. 
 

• To consider the following outcomes: 
 

1.  To note the issues raised in the overview report and the actions 
currently underway and planned in this area. 

 
2. In view of the information received so far, that the Committee give 

strong consideration to selecting Dentistry as a major view topic in 
the next municipal year.  

Page 8



   

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

 
Annex A 

 
 
Suggested questions to the witnesses: 
 
 
1. What are the most common factors associated with poor child oral health? 

 
2. What are the health and socio-developmental implications if poor child oral 
health is not addressed? 

 
3. What steps does your organisation take to reduce and prevent poor child 
oral health? 

 
4. What steps could be taken in the future to improve child oral health? 

 
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

Appendix B 
TO EXAMINE CHILD ORAL HEALTH IN HILLINGDON  
WITNESS SESSION 

 
 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
Briefing on child oral health in Hillingdon 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Dental caries remains the main cause of hospital admissions for children aged under 18 
years. Recently published results of the Child Oral Health Survey for 3 year olds show 
that dental health of children is particularly poor in Hillingdon with the highest rate of 
early childhood caries amongst London boroughs. Local authorities are statutorily 
required to improve health of its population which includes oral health. Transition of 
Public Health to local authority in 2013, has provided new opportunities for health 
visitors and Community Dental Health team to work closely with the Children's Centres 
for better targeting of families at higher risk. 
 

2. Background 
  
Large numbers of children in Hillingdon experience dental disease, the majority of which 
is preventable (related to diet, oral hygiene and lack of exposure to fluoride). Tooth 
decay remains a significant problem, and is the largest cause of hospital admissions, 
particularly among young children in disadvantaged communities.  In addition to hospital 
admissions, school absence due to toothache and dental treatments, impacts of bad 
teeth on self esteem and diet / eating.  
 
The latest survey data shows that : 
 
• For 3 year olds (2013) in Hillingdon, the decayed, missing and filled teeth (dmft) 

is 0.91(in comparison to 0.42 London average) and those with decay experience 
had on average 3.59 decayed, missing or filled teeth (including front teeth) 

• Early childhood decay (see below) of 3 year olds in Hillingdon is 16.1% (the 
highest of all boroughs in London) and the London average is 5.3% 

• 38.2% of 5 year olds in Hillingdon (2012) have experience of tooth decay  
• Across all 5 year old children surveyed in Hillingdon, the average number of dmft 

was 1.51 (London average of 1.23 dmft, England 0.94)    
•  5 year olds with decay have on average 3.96 decayed, missing (extracted) or 

filled teeth (dmft).  
   
 

3. Impacts 
 
Impacts of poor oral health in children are as follows: 
 

Page 11



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

3.1. School readiness and education: Poor oral health can affect children’s ability 
to sleep, eat, speak, play and socialise with other children. Bad teeth cause pain, 
infections, impaired nutrition and growth. As part of the overall health and wellbeing 
of a child, good oral health contributes to children ‘Getting the Best Start in Life’ and 
school readiness. When children have toothache or need treatment, this can mean 
school absence and that families and parents have to take time off work.  

 
3.2. Hospital admissions: Dental caries is the cause of highest number of hospital 

admissions for children aged 1-18 years in the borough, they represent: 6% 
admissions for 1-18 year olds; 15% admissions for 5-9 year olds. Almost all these 
admissions are elective admissions, with many young children attending hospital to 
have teeth extracted or filled under general anaesthetic.  

 

3.3. Illness prevention: Since poor oral health shares the same common risks as 
other chronic diseases any action to reduce these risks (in particular sugars in the 
diet) will improve oral health as well as general health, especially excess weight and 
obesity. Oral health is an integral part of overall health. When children are not 
healthy, this affects their ability to learn, thrive and develop.  

 

3.4. Socio-economic variation: People living in deprived communities consistently 
have poorer oral health than people living in affluent communities. These inequalities 
in oral health run from the top to the bottom of the socioeconomic ladder creating a 
social gradient. Some vulnerable groups have poorer oral health. Many general 
health conditions and oral diseases share common risk factors such as smoking, 
alcohol misuse and poor diet. 

 

4. Causes 
 
Tooth decay is caused by consuming too many sugary foods and drinks too often and 
poor oral hygiene. Unless this lifestyle issue is addressed, there is a much higher risk of 
further tooth decay in permanent adult teeth and throughout later life. It can be 
prevented by eating a healthy balanced diet which limits the amount of foods and drinks 
high in sugar, and also by brushing teeth for two minutes twice a day, once before bed, 
using fluoride toothpaste. 
 
In the survey of 3 year olds, a particular type of decay called ‘Early Childhood Caries’ 
was found and the level for children in Hillingdon was the highest in London (16% 
against the London average of 5.3%). This affects the upper front teeth spreading 
rapidly to other teeth and is related to the consumption of sugary drinks in baby bottles 
or sipping cups. There is a much higher risk of tooth decay if sugary drinks are given to 
children so they should be avoided. Breast feeding provides the best nutrition for babies 
and the best drinks for young children aged 1 to 2 are full fat milk and water and from 2 
years old, semi-skimmed milk and water as long as they are a good eater. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

5. Responsibility for Dental Healthcare and Prevention 
 
Roles and responsibilities of the key organizations involved with improving oral health in 
children and young people are as outlined by Public Health England1: 
 
5.1. NHS England (NHSE):  

• Since 1 April 2013, NHS England has had the responsibility for 
commissioning all NHS dental services - both primary and secondary 
care. This includes developing and negotiating contracts with dentists, 
designing policies, procedures, guidance and care pathways. 

• Responsibility for planning dental services on the basis of needs and 
providing clinical leadership at regional level. 

• Supporting CCGs to assess and assure performance 

• Direct and specialised commissioning 

• Managing and cultivating local partnerships and stakeholder relationships, 
including representation on local health and wellbeing boards 

• local area team director of nursing responsible for supporting and 
providing assurance on safeguarding children  

 
Local Position: Currently in Hillingdon, there are 36 dental practices offering NHS 
dental services. In 2009 there were 44 dental practices  with  NHS Commitment ranging 
from 10% to 100%. The resulting apparent shortfall in NHS provision has allowed 
reinvestment locally to increase NHS Commitment in existing practices through 
stabilization and enable the planned procurement of 2 new practices in Hillingdon by 
NHS England. 
 

  
5.2.  Public Health England (PHE):   

• Provide dental public health and health improvement support for local 
authorities and NHS England, including collaborative commissioning of 
oral health improvement programmes.   

• Contribute to joint strategic needs assessments (JSNA),  strategy 
development, oral health needs assessment 

• Addressing oral health inequalities 

• Ensuring patient safety and governance systems 

• Inform and develop national oral health policies and clinical guidelines  

• Support local authorities to understand their role in relation to water 
fluoridation 

 
Local Position:  The NHSE Area Teams employ Specialist Dental Public Health 
Workforce (i.e. Consultants in Dental Public Health) who support local authorities to 
deliver their functions. As per the PHE guidance1, local authorities can expect the 
specialist dental public health workforce based in PHE to advocate and lead oral health 
needs assessments, oral health policy and strategy development, review oral health 

                                            
1
 Public Health England(2014) Local Authorities improving oral health: commissioning better oral health for 

children and young people. PHE Publications gateway no. 2014147 

Page 13



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

programmes, support commissioning of such programmes. Currently, there are 2 Dental 
Public Health Consultants employed by PHE to work across all of London.  
 
5.3. Local Authorities: 
 

• Jointly statutorily responsible with CCGs for JSNAs  

• Participate in oral health surveys to assess and monitor oral health needs  

• Responsible for reducing health inequalities  

• Planning, commissioning and evaluating oral health improvement programmes  

• Leading scrutiny of delivery of NHS dental services to local populations  

• Local authorities also have the power to make proposals regarding water 
fluoridation schemes, a duty to conduct public consultations in relation to such 
proposals and powers to make decisions about such proposals.  

• Lead responsibility for the healthy child programme 5-19 years (and HCP 0-5 
years from 2015), the national child measurement programme and the care of 
vulnerable children and families (ie. looked after children, the troubled families 
programme)  

• Safeguarding children  

• Commissioning local healthy schools, school food and healthier lifestyle 
programmes  

 
Local Position:  Hillingdon council's approach to prevention is through       

a) Action on common risk factors like improvements in diet and reducing 
consumption of sugary food and drinks;  reduction in alcohol and tobacco 
consumption (these risk factors are the same as for many chronic conditions, 
such as cancer, diabetes and heart disease. As a result, interventions that aim to 
tackle these risk factors will improve general health as well as oral health (Watt 
and Sheiham 2012). Implementation of infant feeding policy and a new Early 
Years Charter based on Healthy Schools Programme with specific standards for 
improving food and drink available to children via childrens settings. The Public 
Health Team also commissions improvement in dental hygiene through 'brushing 
for life' programme (described below).  

b) Participation in oral health surveys, which are carried out as part of the Public 
Health England's dental public health intelligence programme. There is a duty on 
local authorities to participate in any oral health survey conducted by the 
Secretary of State. 

c) The assessment and monitoring of oral health needs with help from 
Consultant in Dental Public Health. The last full oral health needs assessment 
was done in 2010 under Hillingdon PCT, although a number of updates in 
specific areas have been produced to inform both LA and NHS England 
commissioning.  
 

Further details about local action are detailed below. 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

6. Action to date 
 

6.1. Joint Working: 
 Hillingdon Public Health works with Children's Centres,  Early Years Team and the 
local Community  Dental Service (CDS) to prevent dental decay in children aged 0-5 
years of age. This partnership is responsible for implementing programmes like 
Brushing for Life, Infant Feeding Policy and Early Years Charter as described below. 
 
6.2. Brushing For Life: 2013 to now 

Brushing for Life is intended to promote regular brushing of children’s teeth with fluoride 
toothpaste. A pack with information on brushing, a tube with 1,000 ppm fluoride 
toothpaste and a child's toothbrush is provided to the parents  carers.  The advice given  
on a 1-1 basis aims to encourages the habit, from the earliest possible age, of 
appropriate toothbrushing twice a day using a fluoride-containing toothpaste. 
 
 In 2013 a successful business case was put in place through the Public Health and 
Early Years group to secure funding to re-implement the ‘Brush for Life’ programme in 
Hillingdon.  
 
The following actions took place: 

• Training across all children’s centres of staff to be able to provide early 
intervention support for families regarding oral health in either group or one to one 
sessions 

• Parent activities in centres following a launch and the ‘Brushathon’ – this involved 
children and families across all centres holding a dental session at the same time 
and over the 18 centres families brushing together. 

• Existing families across children’s centres received the intervention and a pack.  
The funding provided the packs that could be given to parents to reinforce the 
learning at the sessions. 

 
The evaluation of the programmes across Hillingdon in 2014 have shown that: 

• Knowledge about visiting dentists had improved with 79% of parents thinking that 
children should attend the dentist before the age of 2 years (60% before BFL 
initiative) 

• A 21% increase has been reported in visits to dentists since the BFL initiative. 

• A 13% increase in the number of parents reporting brushing their children’s teeth 
twice daily. 

• There did not appear to be a significant change in overall knowledge of age to 
start brushing (57% when the teeth erupt). 

• More parents appeared to be aware of the correct amount of toothpaste and 
there was a reduction in the number of parents using too much paste from 27% 
to 15% with no parents reporting using no paste after the training. 

 
The benefits of the programme are: 

• Improve life chances for children in areas of deprivation by giving information, 
advice and training to parents and working actively to prevent decay and reduce 
morbidity in teeth. 

Page 15



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

• Establish prevention in the Paediatric Dental Care Pathway so that children who 
do not at present attend a dentist are less likely to suffer as a result. 

• Promote the use of correct use of Fluoride toothpaste which is proven to be a 
major factor in preventing dental decay. 

• Reduce the fear of visiting the dentist which is a major barrier to seeking care 
early. 

• Encourage regular and early attendance at a dentist in order to catch disease 
earlier and reduce the likelihood of long term effects. Currently late uptake of 
care generates increased episodes of pain and sepsis requiring more urgent 
treatment. This also increases the likelihood of the need for treatment in hospital 
and under general anaesthesia. 

 
Funds have been made available for 2014-15 through the Health Promotion team in 
Public health based on the new births numbers within the borough to ensure new 
parents have this information as a core part of the Children's centre offer. Pilot pathway 
being developed for Health visitors to start in December that shows the actions health 
visitors can refer to explore dental health. 
 
6.3. Infant feeding policy for Hillingdon  
As part of applying for Baby Friendly Status the maternity and health visiting services in 
Hillingdon have developed an Infant Feeding policy.  Public Health have briefed Cllr 
Corthorne on this for LBH support and the delivery via early years settings. 
 
6.4. Healthy Early Years 
In November 2013 the Hillingdon Early Years Award was launched.  Following the 
Healthy Schools model this scheme enables early year's settings to review themselves 
against set criteria incorporating questions on food, drinks and oral health. The award 
has been embedded in the Childcare and Early Years team as part of the support they 
offer settings to achieve quality standards.  To date 5 settings have achieved 'Healthy' 
status across nurseries and Children's Centres. 
 
6.5. Hillingdon Early Years Nutrition Network (HEYN) 
HEYN have developed the 'Hillingdon Early Years Nutrition Framework' which settings 
have to endorse and demonstrate in order to achieve healthy early Years status.  
Alongside this there is the 'Healthy Early Years Menu Checklist' for them to work 
through in order to service food that fits with current nutritional guidance and advice.  10 
settings have submitted their menus and have achieved the HEYN award 
 
6.6. Monthly dental drop-ins  
Community Dental Health Promotion Team is offering targeted monthly drop-ins at 
Cornerstone; Harefield; Nestles; Charville Children's Centres.  Any parents 
experiencing problems / looking for information can be directed to these sessions. 
 
6.7. Dentist / Children Centre pilot 
Community Dental Health Team engaging dental practice to model a partnership 
working between dentists and local children centre and potentially other settings over 
time.  Letter sent to 3 practices - West Drayton; Yeading; Hayes. 

Page 16



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

6.8. Dental messages  
Public health and Community Dental Health Promotion Team  are working together to 
develop publicity with key messages and signposting families to the Children's Centres 
as places that can support around dental information.   
Money from the BFL budget held by health promotion would be used to develop these. 
 
6.9. CC/GDP Map - Public Health developing a map that shows the Children's 

Centres in relation to NHS dentists / GDPs (General Dental Practices) so each 
service can signpost to each other and have a visual reference to show parents. 
 

6.10. Feed My Family Training 
Children's centre staff have been trained to deliver the 6 week feed my family course 
that includes within it activities and information around sugar and oral health.  Staff are 
trained across all 3 localities and are planning to embed the sessions within their 
programmes. 
 

7. Gaps 
 
The following gaps have been identified: 
 

• Access to NHS dentistry is poor in certain parts of the borough e.g. Since the 
retirement of the dental practitioner , there are no dentists in Harefield - this issue 
is being raised at Early Years and schools meetings as issues for the families of 
Harefield as they are less likely to travel to other areas of the Borough.   

• Uptake of dental services by young families is poor despite the fact that dental 
care for children is free. Families are not registering children with dentists. 

• Some parents have reported to Community Dental Health Team that they are 
being turned away by dentists when they try to make an appointment for their 
under 3 year olds.  Mystery calling and shopping by the Community Dental 
Services Team has also demonstrated this.  This has been raised at the Local 
Dental Committee and the Community Dental Health Team are awaiting a 
response. 

• Uptake of preventative treatment: fluoride varnish (FV) once a year for every 
child over 3, especially those at higher risk is also poor. Parents do not recognise 
risk factors early enough to take children for FV. 

• Diets need to be approved for families, especially those with young children who 
may need help with cookery skills, knowledge and awareness about harms of 
sugary foods, home economics to plan low cost healthy meals.  

• Training and consistent messaging via frontline staff working with young families 
needs to be supported on an ongoing basis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

8. The Current Policy drivers: 

 

The following policy drivers exist to support and encourage local action:  
 
8.1. The recent national guidance for Local authorities in their Commissioning Better 

Oral Health for Children and Young People - CBOH (2014)1 recommends adopting a 

range of integrated interventions across partner organisations throughout the life 

course using both universal and targeted approaches to meet local needs. There is 

specific emphasis on improving the oral health of children.  

 

8.2. PHE and NHS also produced an evidence based toolkit for prevention2 to target 

clinical teams with evidence based prevention, improved methods of self-care and 

equity of care. 

 

8.3. National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) has produced public 

health guidance3 which made 21 recommendations for local authorities and their 

partners  on undertaking oral health needs assessments, developing a strategy and 

delivering community based interventions and activities. 

 

8.4.  The current North West London Child Oral Health Strategy 2011 has three 

overarching priority areas: 

• ‘Making oral health everybody’s business and every contact count’ 
• Integration of oral health with other Public Health and Children’s Programmes 
• Increasing children’s exposure to fluoride 

This strategy is being updated to ensure it aligns with the latest guidance  
 
 

9. Partnership Plan for 2015/16 

 

Hillingdon Council is working on the following areas with PHE, NHSE (London) and 
NHS providers (e.g. CNWL), to address the gaps (section 7) and issues raised above. 
 
9.1. Brushing for life – Cost for this programme is covered for 2015/16 via Public 

Health Team, which provides the toothbrush packs, and leaflets for Children's 

Centres Teams; who will distribute age-appropriate toothbrush and toothpaste packs 

with evidence-based oral health messages.  

 

9.2.  Schools FV Outreach Programme – This is an evidence-based dental health 

programme, including the application of fluoride varnish, tooth brushing sessions 

and signposting to dental practices. NHS England has agreed to commission it for 

                                            
2
 Public Health England (2014) Delivering better oral health: an evidence based toolkit for prevention. Third 

Edition. PHE gateway no. 2014126 
3
 National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2014) Oral Health: approaches for local authorities and their 

partners to improve the oral health of their communities. 

Page 18



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

delivery on an outreach basis to 3-7 year olds in targeted primary schools across the 

borough from local dental practices.  Ten schools would be targeted based on the 

proportion of their pupils eligible for free school meals (a marker of deprivation and a 

proxy for oral health need). 

 

9.3. Healthy Schools Partnership (HSP) – Oral health is a focus area within HSP.  To 

receive a Bronze award, schools need to meet objectives around healthy eating and 

drinking which are consistent with improving oral health. Oral health could be offered 

as one of the specialist areas schools can work towards to achieve their Silver 

Award.    

 

9.4. Promotion of access to NHS dental services including fluoride varnish – an article 

about promoting the access to NHS dental services and outlining the benefits of 

fluoride is proposed to be circulated in local papers such as the Informer and 

Leader. Action by NHS England in collaboration with PHE would be to provide 

practices with training for Fluoride application for staff and increase capacity in 

practices. 

 

9.5. Training and consistent messaging – Community child health staff have been 

trained to provide evidence based and consistent oral health messages and to 

signpost families to dentists as part of an integrated approach to reducing children’s 

dental decay.  Oral health resources including borough-specific ‘Finding an NHS 

dentist’ leaflets and ‘Healthy Teeth, Healthy Smiles’ leaflets will continue to be 

distributed. 

 

9.6. Dental screening in special schools – The Community and Specialist Dental 

Service (CNWL), commissioned by NHS England, continues to provide annual 

dental screening at the special schools in Hillingdon alongside a tooth brushing and 

oral health programme for pupils at the schools. 

 

9.7. Paediatric dental pathway – NHS England has set up a working group to look at 

the Paediatric Dental Pathway in North West London. This aims to develop and 

implement a pathway which incorporates oral health promotion, primary, community 

and secondary care to ensure that children and families receive the right oral health 

advice in the most appropriate environment. The first meeting was held in March 

2014, where learning from the oral health improvement work in NWL was shared as 

part of the process. A further network meeting was held in January 2015 between 

providers from both acute trusts and Community Dental Services for North London 

to co-develop interim solutions to the capacity and hence waiting time issues faced 

by paediatric dental referrals.  

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

10. Investment by partners:  

The following funding support from partners has been agreed.   
 

NHS England contribution: 
• Access Project Manager and 

resources eg. Finding an NHS 
Dentist leaflet for adults and 
children to be distributed around 
the Hillingdon Borough. Posters 
for GP practices and 
Pharmacies. 

• Increase UDA activity in NHS 
Dental Practices for families as a 
result of access promotion – 
(NHS England is investing a 
total of £500k in Hillingdon (2 
new practices) and stabilisation 
funds for other practices to 
increase access. 

• Dental Practice Team capacity to 
provide Schools Outreach Pilot 
Programme in 10 targeted 
schools – contract management, 
capacity, fluoride 
varnish/sundries for programme 
and programme launch with 
dentists 

 

Hillingdon Local Authority contribution: 
• Brushing for Life’ toothpaste and 

brush packs (funding in place for 
2015/16) 

• ‘Healthy Teeth Healthy Smiles’ 
Leaflet (small cost photocopying 
and distribution) 

• £5k contribution for Dental Project 
Manager – partnership projects 
(between Ealing, Hounslow 
Hillingdon and Brent). 

 

£800,000 £5,000 

 
 

11. Summary 

• Oral health in children aged under 5 continues to be bad and is the highest cause 
of hospital admissions in children. This impacts negatively on school readiness, 
children's social life, self perception and confidence, general health and 
education. 

 

• Prevention across the Life Course is simple, low cost and cost effective, 
especially when started early. Risk factors like dental caries can be tackled early 
in life through simple measures. Hillingdon has initiated work on several fronts, 
but as shown by local data, more action is required to encourage parents to 
access dental services for children and improve diets.  

 

• NHS England recognizes the issues within Northwest London and has set aside 
monies (800K) to improve services and work with boroughs to improve oral 
health of children. Some parts of Hillingdon have poorer access than the others 
which is being addressed through planned procurements. Evidence from 

Page 20



Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

children's centres, and schools shows that parents have difficulties accessing 
NHS services.  Further work is needed with NHS Dental Practices to increase 
access for young families early and for them to receive prevention in line with 
best practice. Refresh the  Hillingdon Oral Health Needs Assessment to provide 
evidence for deciding priorities across partners 
 

• There is a need to continue to support and promote the delivery of the National 
Dental Public Health Epidemiological Survey programme to ensure schools 
selected for the survey are encouraged to participate and maximum child 
consent rates are achieved. 
 

• Currently, to promote oral health and reduce inequalities across the Borough of 
Hillingdon, there is support for Brushing for Life (toothpaste and brush packs and 
associated information), fluoride varnish as well as brief oral health intervention 
by health and social care professionals  
 

 

• Further develop collaborative approaches to promote oral health improvement, 
reduce inequalities and increase access to quality dental services 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 
 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
Contact Officer: Charles Francis 

Telephone: 01895 556454 
 
 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Committee is required to consider the Forward Plan and provide Cabinet with any 
comments it wishes to make before the decision is taken. 
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
1. Decide to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 

 
2. Decide not to comment on any items coming before Cabinet 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Forward Plan is updated on the 15th of each month. An edited version to include 

only items relevant to the Committee’s remit is attached below. The full version can 
be found on the front page of the ‘Members’ Desk’ under ‘Useful Links’. 

 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 

1. Members decide whether to examine any of the reports listed on the Forward 
Plan at a future meeting. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s)

F
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

b
y
 F
u
ll
 

C
o
u
n
c
il

C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r(
s
) 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

N
E
W
 I
T
E
M

P
ri
v
a
te
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
?

27 Care and Support 

Services for People 

with Mental Health 

Needs: Award of 

Contract

This report asks Cabinet to consider single tender 

action to award a short contract to Look Ahead for the 

provision of care and support at Hayes Park Lodge, 

Hamlet Lodge and Peachy Close. 

Various Cllr Philip 

Corthorne

ASCS - 

Beverley 

Grayley

NEW Private 

(3)

28 Best Interest 

Assessors- Award of 

Contract

This report recommends award of contract to provide a 

Best Interest Assessor service across the Borough, 

which is a new statutory requirement. Best Interests 

Assessors carry out an review of the deprivation of 

liberty of individuals who lack the mental capacity to 

consent to treatment or care they may need.

N/A Cllr Philip 

Corthorne

ASCS - 

Beverley 

Grayley

NEW Private 

(3)

29 The provision of 

water quality 

services in various 

general fund and 

housing properties

Cabinet will consider the award of a three year 

contract, with the option to extend for a further two 

years, for the provision of water quality services in 

various general fund and housing properties. This will 

ensure the Council can continue to take measures to 

minimise any health risks, along with receiving up-to-

date information on water consumption for improved 

conservation.

Various Cllr 

Jonathan 

Bianco / Cllr 

Philip 

Corthorne

RS - Paul 

Stanford 
Kupakuwana

NEW Private 

(3)

18 Supported housing 

schemes - learning 

disability and mental 

health

Cabinet will be asked to authorise the delivery of the 

supported housing schemes at Chippendale Waye and 

Acol Crescent and provide for the necessary delegated 

authority to make further decisions on the matter.

South 

Ruislip, 

Uxbridge 

North

Cllr Philip 

Corthorne 

and Cllr 

Jonathan 

Bianco

RS - Marcia 

Gillings

Private 

(3)

Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services     CYPS =Children and Young People's Services    ASCS= Adult Social Care Services     AD = Administration    FD= Finance 

Cabinet meeting - 19 March 2015

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 1 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
a
g
e
 2

5



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s)

F
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

b
y
 F
u
ll
 

C
o
u
n
c
il

C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r(
s
) 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

N
E
W
 I
T
E
M

P
ri
v
a
te
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services     CYPS =Children and Young People's Services    ASCS= Adult Social Care Services     AD = Administration    FD= Finance 

24 Contract Award for 

the Integrated 

Substance Misuse 

Service

Officers will be making recommendations to Cabinet 

for the award of the Integrated Substance Misuse 

Service Contract, following significant stakeholder 

consultation.

All Cllr Philip 

Corthorne

RS / FD - 

Nigel Dicker 

/ Steve 

Powell

CCG, 

stakeholders, 

External 

Services 

Scrutiny 

Committee

Private 

(3)

5 Better Care Fund 

Pooled Budget

The report will seek Cabinet approval to enter into a 

pooled budget with Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning 

Group under section 75 of the National Health Service 

Act 2006 for Hillingdon's Better Care Fund Plan.  The 

plan seeks to achieve better outcomes for Hillingdon's 

older residents through greater integration between 

health and social care.

All Cllr Ray 

Puddifoot 

MBE & Cllr 

Philip 

Corthorne

ASC - Gary 

Collier

Hillingdon 

CCG, NHSE

31 Award of Contract: 

Support Living for 

Adults with Learning 

Disabilities

Cabinet will be requested to award care and support 

contracts for a number of Supported Living Schemes 

within Hillingdon. 

Various Cllr Philip 

Corthorne

ASCS - 

Tony Zaman 

/ FD - 

Richard 

Robbins

All key 

relevant 

stakeholders, 

inc Service 

Users, 

Providers and 

NEW Private 

(3)

33 Carers Strategy 2015-

18

Cabinet will be asked to approve a refreshed Carers 

Strategy on behalf of the Council, with respective 

approval from the NHS by the Hillingdon CCG Board. 

The ongoing delivery of the Strategy will then be 

monitored via the Health & Wellbeing Board, as one of 

the actions within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

All Cllr Philip 

Corthorne

AD - Vicky 

Trott / ASCS 

- John 

Higgins

Carers and 

stakeholders

NEW

Cabinet meeting - 23 April 2015

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 2 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
a
g
e
 2

6



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s)

F
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

b
y
 F
u
ll
 

C
o
u
n
c
il

C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r(
s
) 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

N
E
W
 I
T
E
M

P
ri
v
a
te
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services     CYPS =Children and Young People's Services    ASCS= Adult Social Care Services     AD = Administration    FD= Finance 

19 Supported housing - 

Extra-care schemes 

for older people

Cabinet will be asked to authorise the delivery of the 

supported housing schemes at the former Grassy 

Meadow and Parkview Day Centres sites and South 

Ruislip Library Plot B site. This will include the 

necessary delegated authority to make further 

decisions on these projects.

South 

Ruislip, 
Yiewsley

Cllr Philip 

Corthorne 

and Cllr 

Jonathan 

Bianco

RS - Marcia 

Gillings

Private 

(3)

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 3 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
a
g
e
 2

7



P
a
g
e
 2

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15 

Contact Officer: Charles Francis 
Telephone: 01895 556454 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This 
is a standard item at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings  
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.  
 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
 
All meetings to start at 7.00pm 
 
 

Meetings  Room 

 3 July 2014 CR 6 

31 July 2014 CR 5 

9 September 2014 CR 6 

7 October 2014 CR 6 

 5 November 2014 CR 5 

21 January 2015 CR 6 

 24 February 2015 CR 6 

 26 March 2015 CR 5 

22 April 2015 CR 5 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
 
2014/15 -  DRAFT Work Programme 
 

Meeting Date Item 

3 July 2014 SS, Hsg & PH Policy Overview Committee  

Possible Review Topics 2014/15 

Departmental Overview report 

Work programme for 2014/15 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

 
 31 July 2014 Budget Planning Report for SS,Hsg&PH 

Scoping Report for Major Review 

Work Programme 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

 

 9 September 2014 Major Review -   Witness Session  

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Annual Complaints Report 

Work Programme 

 
  7 October 2014 
 
 

Major Review  - Witness Session  

Update on previous review recommendations 
(Tenancy Review) 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

  
5 November 2014 
 

Adult Mental Health Services - Update report 

Adaptations - Update report 

Annual Public Health Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

Page 30



 

Social Services, Housing and Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
24 February 2015 

 
PART I – Members, Public and Press 

 
 

 

 
  
 
21 January 2015 Budget Proposals Report for 2015/16 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Major Review  - Draft Final Report - Shared Lives 

Adults Safeguarding report 

Work Programme 

 
 
24 February 2015 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

Single Item Review Topic 

 
 

26 March 2015 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

Single Item Review topic -  Report 

Update on previous review recommendations 
(Tenancy Review) 

 
 

22 April 2015 Cabinet Forward Plan 

Mental Health Update 

 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2015
	5 Review - 2014/15 -  Witness Session
	Child Oral Health Covering report - Appx B

	6 Forward Plan
	2015 - 03 - 05

	7 Work Programme

